


CLERK’S SUMMARY OF MEETING AND OFFICIAL MINUTES 
TOURIST DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 

JULY 9, 2013 
 
 
The Tourist Development Council (TDC) convened in the 6th floor Conference Room at the 
Stephen P. Clark Government Center, 111 Northwest First Street, Miami, Florida, at 2:30 p.m. 
on July 9, 2013.  There being present Chairman Esteban Bovo Jr. and members Mr. Stuart 
Blumberg, Mr. Gene Prescott, Ms. Olga Ramudo, and Mr. William Perry III; (City of Miami 
Beach Mayor Mattie Herrera Bower and City of Miami Commissioner Michelle Spence-Jones 
were absent).    
 
The following staff members were present: Mr. Michael Spring, Director, Department of 
Cultural Affairs; Mrs. Nikenna D. Benjamin, Grants Program Administrator; Ms. Doriamny 
Cardenas, Program Assistant; Assistant County Attorney Daniel Frastai; and Deputy Clerks 
Karen Harrison and Tawana Parker. 
 
Mr. William “Bill” Talbert, President of the Greater Miami Convention Visitor’s Bureau, was 
also present. 
 
Chairman Bovo called the meeting to order at 2:30 p.m.  He asked the Council members to state 
their names for the record. 
 
I. Additions, Deletions, Withdrawals 
 
There were no additions, deletions, or withdrawals from today’s agenda. 
 
II. Conflict of Interest 
 
Mr. Michael Spring, Director, Department of Cultural Affairs, indicated that a conflict of interest 
existed for a TDC member on any item before the TDC if any of the following instances applied: 
 

• the TDC Board Member was a paid staff member of an applicant organization; 
• the TDC Board Member served on the Board of Directors of an applicant’s organization;  
• and the TDC Board Member made a contribution of at least $1000 to an applicant’s 

organization within the last three years. 
 
Mr. Spring noted the Conflict of Interest (COI) policy also applied if an immediate family 
member of a TDC Board member fell into those categories.  
 
III.  Items for Approval 
 

A. Minutes of the April 11, 2013 Meeting 
It was moved by Mr. William Perry III that the minutes of the April 11, 2013 Tourist 
Development Council (TDC) Meeting be approved.  This motion was seconded by Ms. Olga 

July 9, 2013 Clerk’s Summary of Meeting and Official Minutes Page 1 of 13 
 Tourist Development Council Meeting 



Ramudo, and upon being put to a vote, passed 5-0 (City of Miami Beach Mayor Mattie Herrera 
Bower and City of Miami Commissioner Michelle Spence-Jones were absent).    
 

B. Third Quarter Deferred Applicant 
Junior Orange Bowl Committee, Inc.     $6,000 
Junior Orange Bowl International Tennis, Golf, Chess 
Sports Ability Games & National Basketball 
 

Mr. Michael Spring advised there was a conflict of interest in today’s (7/9) meeting concerning 
the foregoing applicant, which involved Mr. William Perry III and Mr. Gene Prescott, and would 
require this item to be deferred as a carry-over to the First Quarter Funding Period of the fiscal 
year (FY) 2013-2014 for retro-active approval by the Council. 
 

C. Proposed Program and Policy Recommendations 
Mr. Spring advised that during this Fourth Quarter FY2012-13, the Council should identify any 
policy issues; however, the guidelines and process have worked well, and the applicants 
appeared to be satisfied with the services provided by this Council.  He asked whether the 
Council members had any policy issues to address 
 
 Hearing no comments or questions, the Council proceeded to consider today’s (7/9) agenda. 
   

D. Overview of TDC Board Terms and Nominations 
Mr. Michael Spring explained that TDC staff publicized a request for applicants to apply for 
membership of the TDC for the two current vacancies on the Council.  He noted the seats on the 
Council were mandated categories and defined by State statute to be owners or operators of 
hotels or motels located in Miami-Dade County.   
 
Mr. Spring noted that upon receipt of applications, the Nominating Committee recommended the 
following candidates as members of the TDC Council to be forwarded to the Board of County 
Commission (BCC) for approval: Hermant Patel, General Manager, King Motel/Mid-Town Inn; 
Danielle Torres, Director of Sales, Marriott Courtyard/ Hampton Inn.  He further noted that the 
resumes of these candidates were included in today’s (7/9) TDC Meeting Agenda Package.     
 
Mr. Stuart Blumberg pointed out that a unanimous vote was not received for a nominee from the 
Nominating Committee members. 
 
Mr. Spring noted the information reflecting the number of votes for nominee Hermant Patel, 
which was 2-1, would be indicated in today’s (7/9) TDC Minutes. 
 
It was moved by Mr. William Perry III that the TDC approve the TDC Nominating Committee 
recommendations of Hermant Patel and Danielle Torres be forwarded to the BCC for approval.  
This motion was seconded by Mr. Gene Prescott, and upon being put to a vote, passed 5-0 
(Council members City of Miami Beach Mayor Mattie Herrera Bower and City of Miami 
Commissioner Michelle Spence-Jones were absent).     
     

E. FY 2011-2012 Sunset Review 

July 9, 2013 Clerk’s Summary of Meeting and Official Minutes Page 2 of 13 
 Tourist Development Council Meeting 



Mr. Michael Spring advised that the County Commission has mandated all County Boards to 
undergo Sunset Reviews bi-annually, and this Council would be included.  He noted the 
following items to be provided to the County Commission were in the agenda package, which 
was subject to the review by the Council: the outline of accomplishments; each Council member 
attendance records; and the recommendation to continue the work of TDC.  Mr. Spring indicated 
the need for the Council to endorse this Sunset Review Report. 
                                                    
It was moved by Mr. Stuart Blumberg that the foregoing Sunset Review Report be endorsed by 
the Council members.  This motion was seconded by Mr. William Perry III, and upon being put 
to a vote, passed 5-0 (City of Miami Beach Mayor Mattie Herrera Bower and City of Miami 
Commissioner Michelle Spence-Jones were absent).    
 
IV. Reports and Discussion Items 
 

A. Recap of Adopted TDC Criteria for Grant Evaluation 
Mr. Michael Spring presented a brief update of the foregoing report noting a provision of notice 
that the TDC Criteria and Grant Guidelines would be reissued for the FY 2013-14.  He noted the 
Council members needed to review the guidelines at today’s (7/9) meeting and provide input, 
which reflected the changes the TDC has made over the years to refine the application process. 
 

B. Updated Budget / Financial Position and Funding Recommendations for FY 2012-
13 Fourth Funding Period 

Mr. Michael Spring advised that the TDC was in its fourth and final quarter of this fiscal year 
spanning from July to September.  He stated the fiscal year for the County started October 1st,   
and the accumulated revenue totaled $1.3 million for this year, and budgets were prepared 
sufficiently per quarter to ensure adequate resources were available to award the applicants.   
 
Mr. Spring noted that based on the TDC Subcommittee recommendations the funding 
recommendation for 20 applications totaled $199,000.00.  He also noted the initial 20 application 
requests totaled $321,000.00, which was received from seven (7) new applications, and 13 were 
for continuing projects.  He stated that 17 applications were non-profit organizations and three 
(3) were for-profit organizations.   
 
Mr. Spring also noted if the TDC Subcommittee recommendations were approved by the Council 
there would be a reserve balance of approximately $194,000.00, which could be used to make 
adjustments on today’s (7/9) proposed awards or carried over to the next fiscal year. 
 
Chairman Bovo asked the Council members to provide input regarding the allocations 
recommended by the TDC Subcommittee and whether the $194,000.00 should be placed in the 
reserve account.   
 
Mr. Stuart Blumberg indicated that during today’s (7/9) process of reviewing the 
recommendations and hearing the Citizen’s Presentations the Council usually determined if there 
were any further recommendations at hand.   
 

July 9, 2013 Clerk’s Summary of Meeting and Official Minutes Page 3 of 13 
 Tourist Development Council Meeting 



Additionally, Mr. Blumberg noted the issue regarding the Sunset Review document reflected a 
list of TDC’s accomplished work in funding a large number of organizational events within the 
community and he stressed the need for a public relations effort to share this information.   
 
Mr. Michael Spring noted the Sunset Review process provided the opportunities to televise 
meetings through the County Commission, which reflected the work of TDC.  He further noted 
the requirements of the awarded applicants included acknowledgement of TDC by placing the 
County logo on all promotional materials because TDC had a unified brand with the County.  
Mr. Spring indicated the most effective investment of the funds in the reserve account was to 
award more organizational events, which were included in the calendar of events of the Greater 
Miami Convention and Visitors Bureau as a collaborative effort with TDC. 
 
Discussion ensued among the Council members regarding the activities of the TDC that was 
published in the Convention Bureau’s weekly newsletter that was distributed to 10,000 people. 
 
Further discussion ensued regarding the TDC active social media accounts, such as the Facebook 
and Tweeter account.   
 
In response to Mr. Stuart Blumberg’s inquiry regarding connections to the media, Mr. William 
Talbert noted a pro-bono article could be published in the Convention weekly newsletter 
regarding TDC.   He commented on other newspaper resources such as Miami Today, South 
Florida Business Journal, and the Miami Herald. 
 
Chairman Bovo stressed the importance of educating and informing the community on how their 
tax dollars were allocated and the events that were supported to limit misinformation.   
 
V. Citizen’s Presentations  
VI. Grant Applications and Recommendations – Fourth Funding Period 
 

A. Special Events/Promotions (Non-Profit) – Continuing  
 
VI. A-2. Coral Gables Congregational Church (United Church of Christ), Inc.   
            
In the absence of the foregoing applicant for this application, Mr. Michael Spring noted that 
there was a conflict of interest so the Council would not be able to take a vote on this item at 
today’s (7/9) meeting. 
 
VI. A-3. Inffinito Art & Cultural Foundation, Inc.  Final Recommendation 
          $10,000 
Ms. Viviane Spinelli of the foregoing applicant appeared before the Council and expressed 
appreciation of the support received from Miami-Dade County for the Brazilian Film Festival of 
Miami. She noted that the organization would be celebrating its 17th anniversary in August, 2013 
featuring programs in Latin America. She commented on the collaborative marketing efforts 
through Brazilian newspapers, magazines, and the Brazilian Airlines in addition to the hotel to 
attract more Brazilian tourists to Miami. Ms. Spinelli requested that the Council consider 
increasing the awarded amount to this organization. 

July 9, 2013 Clerk’s Summary of Meeting and Official Minutes Page 4 of 13 
 Tourist Development Council Meeting 



 
In response to Ms. Olga Ramudo’s inquiry regarding clarification of where participants of the 
events were staying, Ms. Spinelli noted the information regarding the 220 hotel room nights was 
based on the feedback received from a survey by their clients; however, the remaining number of 
clients not listed independently arrange their stay at other hotels.    
 
Later in the meeting, Chairman Bovo asked for clarification on the global impact, in terms of the 
number of people the event reached. 
 
Ms. Spinelli noted that the Brazilian Film Festival of Miami event reached approximately 8,000 
people across the country from places like Portugal, Brazil, and Latin America.    
  
Discussion ensued among the Council members regarding the number of participants reflected 
on the application, which was 500 participants in foreign countries, 300 participants out of state, 
and 1200 out of the county.  
 
It was moved by Chairman Bovo that FY2012-2013 TDC fourth funding period recommendation 
by the Subcommittee for the Inffinito Art & Cultural Foundation, Inc., be increased from 
$10,000 to $15,000.  This motion was seconded by Ms. Olga Ramudo, and upon being put to a 
vote, the vote passed 5-0, (City of Miami Beach Mayor Mattie Herrera Bower and City of Miami 
Commissioner Michelle Spence-Jones were absent).    
 
VI. A-4.  Miami Hispanic Ballet Corp.     Final Recommendation 
          $17,000 
Ms. Christina Castellano appeared before the Council and thanked the members for their support.  
She commented on the increased growth of the event each year, and pointed out the upcoming 
schedule, which included ballet companies from Argentina, Brazil, Mexico and Switzerland in 
addition to Arizona and New York.  Ms. Castellano noted the two award winners who would be 
conducting dance critics was from England and Cuba.  She noted that the 200 participants were 
worldwide and included dancers, artists, as well as their families.  Ms. Castellano noted the 
importance of the support from TDC and asked that the Council consider an increase in the 
award amount. 
 
Later in the meeting, it was moved by Ms. Olga Ramudo that FY2012-2013 TDC fourth funding 
period recommendation by the Subcommittee for the Miami Hispanic Ballet Corp. be increased 
from $12,000 to $17,000.  This motion was seconded by Chairman Bovo, and upon being put to 
a vote, the vote passed 4-1, Mr. Stuart Blumberg voted No. (City of Miami Beach Mayor Mattie 
Herrera Bower and City of Miami Commissioner Michelle Spence-Jones were absent).    
 
 
VI. A-10. Viernes Culturales/Cultural Friday, Inc.  Final Recommendation 
          $15,000 
Mr. Jose Casanova representing the foregoing application appeared before the Council and 
expressed his appreciation for their support.  He noted the organization has been in existence for 
13 years and attracted 500,000 to Little Havana for these events. Mr. Casanova noted that in 
addition to cultural, the event supported economic development, which reflects the increase of 

July 9, 2013 Clerk’s Summary of Meeting and Official Minutes Page 5 of 13 
 Tourist Development Council Meeting 



tourism.  He commented on the economic development results of 22 new art galleries, new 
restaurants and specialty stores.  Mr. Casanova asked that the Council consider increasing the 
recommended amount to $15,000 requested amount. 
 
Later in the meeting, it was moved by Ms. Olga Ramudo that FY2012-2013 TDC fourth funding 
period award recommendation by the Subcommittee for Viernes Culturales/Cultural Fridays, Inc. 
be increased from $12,000 to $15,000.  This motion was seconded by William Perry III, and 
upon being put to a vote, the vote passed 5-0. (City of Miami Beach Mayor Mattie Herrera 
Bower and City of Miami Commissioner Michelle Spence-Jones were absent).    
 
 
VI. A-11. Visitor Industry Human Resource Development Council, Inc. d/b/a Black  

Hospitality Initiative of Greater Miami     Final Recommendation 
          $15,000 
Ms. Graylyn Swilley appeared before the Council members representing the foregoing 
application noting the organization’s purpose for this request was to develop a heritage tourism 
cultural experience.  She commented on the fast growing industry of heritage tourism and 
explained that the request for funding was to provide educational, cultural tools to six 
neighborhoods to increase tourism and local participation, which included Wynwood, Overtown, 
Little Haiti, and Little Havana.   
 
In response to Mr. Stuart Blumberg’s question regarding whether the initial mission changed 
from the time that the organization was founded, Ms. Swilley noted that the mission had not 
changed, but increased in terms of meeting the demands of society.  She noted the organization 
was continuing with the educational program, that was teaching students to become tour operator 
was another phase and part of the mission. 
 
Later in the meeting, it was moved by Ms. Olga Ramudo that the FY2012-2013 TDC fourth 
funding period award recommendation by the Subcommittee for Visitor Industry Human 
Resource Development Council, Inc. be increased from $9,000 to $15,000.  This motion was 
seconded by Mr. Gene Prescott, and upon being put to a vote, the vote passed 4-1, Mr. Stuart 
Blumberg voted No. (City of Miami Beach Mayor Mattie Herrera Bower and City of Miami 
Commissioner Michelle Spence-Jones were absent).    
 
Upon making the needed adjustments on the foregoing items in VI-A Section, Mr. Michael 
Spring announced that VI-A2 application would be deferred to the first quarter funding period of 
next year because there was a conflict of interest with Mr. Gene Prescott.   
 
It was moved by Mr. Stuart Blumberg that the FY2012-2013 TDC fourth funding period award 
recommendations by the Subcommittee for the remaining applications in VI-A Section of 
Special Events/Promotions (Non-Profit) – Continuing who did not make a presentation in 
today’s (7/9) TDC meeting be approved as follows: 
 
Agenda Item No  Organization Name   Final Recommendation 
 
VI. A-1. Community Arts and Culture, Inc.   $ 5,000 

July 9, 2013 Clerk’s Summary of Meeting and Official Minutes Page 6 of 13 
 Tourist Development Council Meeting 



VI. A-5. Olympia Center, Inc. d/b/a Gusman Center   $ 9,000  

  for the Performing Arts 

VI. A-6. Partons of Exceptinal Artists, Inc.   $ 3,000 

VI. A-7. Teatro Avante, Inc     $10,000 

VI. A-8. The Miami Children’s Museum, Inc.   $12,000 

VI. A-9 The National Auxilary Association, Inc.  $ 3,500 

This motion was seconded by Mr. William Perry III, and upon being put to a vote, the vote 
passed 5-0 (City of Miami Beach Mayor Mattie Herrera Bower and City of Miami 
Commissioner Michelle Spence-Jones were absent).    
 

B. Special Events/Promotions (Non-Profit) – First-Time 
 

VI. B-2. Key Biscayne Community Foundation, Inc. Final Recommendation 
          $5,000 
Ms. Melissa White appeared before the Council members on behalf of the foregoing organization 
and noted it would be sponsoring its 54th Annual Key Biscayne 4th of July Parade that attracted 
countywide residents.  She thanked the Council members for their support. 
 
VI. B-3. South Florida Art Center, Inc. d/b/a Art Center South Florida 
         Final Recommendation 
          $5,000 
Ms. Cherese Crockett, Exhibition Manager appeared before the Council, representing the 
foregoing organization and noted the upcoming exhibition would be held August 3-9th, 2013, 
featuring four out of seven artists who were from New York.  She said a tour package would be 
provided to guests who stayed at South Beach hotels and would include a guided tour of the 
exhibition, and private studio tours for resident artists, and discounts for well-known restaurants.  
Ms. Crockett noted that with the grant awarded at today’s meeting additional marketing efforts 
would be implemented. 
 
It was moved by Mr. Stuart Blumberg that the FY2012-2013 TDC fourth funding period award 
recommendations by the Subcommittee for the applications in VI-B Section Special 
Events/Promotions (Non-Profit)-First-Time be approved including item VI.B-1 Delou Africa, 
Inc. in the amount of $3,500 who did make a presentation at today’s (7/9) meeting.  This motion 
was seconded by Ms. Olga Ramudo, and upon being put to a vote, the vote passed 5-0 (City of 
Miami Beach Mayor Mattie Herrera Bower and City of Miami Commissioner Michelle Spence-
Jones were absent).    
 

C. Special Events/Promotions (For-Profit) – First-Time    
 
VI. C-1. Film Life, Inc.     Final Recommendation 
          $25,000 
Ms. Yvette Harris, Community Relations Director, American Black Film Festival, appeared 
before the Council members and noted this was its 17th Anniversary.  She provided a brief 

July 9, 2013 Clerk’s Summary of Meeting and Official Minutes Page 7 of 13 
 Tourist Development Council Meeting 



history of the locations and the featured celebrities at the events such as Spike Lee.  Ms. Harris 
commented on the partners in marketing such as NBC Universal, and Nickelodeon, and the use 
of six major studios Walt Disney, Sony, etc.   She noted there were more than the actual secured 
600 room nights because of the need to identify a better way to track the attendance, which in 
moving forward will be a collaborative effort with the Greater Miami Convention Center and 
Visitors Bureau.   Ms. Harris noted the event hosted approximated 4,000 African Americans. 
 
It was moved by Mr. Stuart Blumberg that the FY2012-2013 TDC fourth funding period award 
recommendations by the Subcommittee for the foregoing application in VI-C Section Special 
Events/Promotions (For-Profit) – First Time be approved.  This motion was seconded by Ms. 
Olga Ramudo, and upon being put to a vote, the vote passed 5-0 (City of Miami Beach Mayor 
Mattie Herrera Bower and City of Miami Commissioner Michelle Spence-Jones were absent).    
 
 

D. Sports (Non-Profit) – Continuing 
 
VI. D-1. Pinecrest Premier Soccer, Inc.   Final Recommendation 
          $12,500 
Ms. Olga Ramudo noted for clarification that the requested amount by the foregoing organization 
was $12,500, rather than the $10,000 that was reflected on today’s (7/9) agenda.   
 
Mr. Nick Megaloudis, Director of Pinecrest Premier Soccer Club appeared before the Council, 
represent the Mega Cup Miami Soccer Tournament and the 4th Annual Tournament was 
forthcoming.  He thanked the TDC members for their support since the beginning of the 
organization.  Mr. Megaloudis pointed out the success of the organization was related to 
competition level rising and the opportunities to play outside teams.  He noted the expected 
number of participating teams was about 210 this year and was looking forward to moving out of 
state and international.  Mr. Megaloudis said that this funding had assisted with marketing efforts 
and he thanked the TDC Council for their support for the past three years. 
 
Mr. Stuart Blumberg explained to Ms. Ramudo that both the Soccer and Judo applications were 
originally recommended $10,000; however, he had requested to increase both applications with 
an additional $2,500.00 for a total of $12,500.00.   
 
VI. D-2.  United States Judo, Inc.    Final Recommendation 
          $17,500 
Mr. Jose Rodriguez appeared before the Council, on behalf of the foregoing application and he 
provided the members with some photographs.  He noted that the organization was a national 
governing body of judo within the United States.  Mr. Rodriguez announced that the 2013 IJF 
World Cade Championship would be held on August 8th- 12th, which was an Olympic qualifier 
for youth that would be held in China in 2014.  He also noted there would be over 200 countries 
participating in addition to over 1,000 visitors and athletes that would stay in over 550 hotel 
room nights.  He provided a brief overview of the activities in the past year that involved 
nationwide participation.  Mr. Rodriguez thanked the Council members for their support and he 
asked that this application received the requested amount totaling $17,500.00 that was needed to 
invest into the event.   

July 9, 2013 Clerk’s Summary of Meeting and Official Minutes Page 8 of 13 
 Tourist Development Council Meeting 



 
Later in the meeting, it was moved by Ms. Olga Ramudo that FY2012-2013 TDC fourth funding 
period award recommendation by the Subcommittee for United States Judo, Inc., be increased 
from $12,500 to $17,500.  This motion was seconded by William Perry III, and upon being put 
to a vote, the vote passed 5-0. (City of Miami Beach Mayor Mattie Herrera Bower and City of 
Miami Commissioner Michelle Spence-Jones were absent).    
 
It was moved by Mr. Stuart Blumberg that the FY2012-2013 TDC fourth funding period award 
recommendations by the Subcommittee for the remaining applications in VI-D Section Sports 
(Non-Profit) – Continuing be approved.  This motion was seconded by Mr. William Perry III, 
and upon being put to a vote, the vote passed 5-0 (City of Miami Beach Mayor Mattie Herrera 
Bower and City of Miami Commissioner Michelle Spence-Jones were absent).    
 

E. Sports (For-Profit) – First-Time  
 
VI. E-1. World Baseball Foundation    Final Recommendation 
          $15,000 
Mr. Mario Signorello appeared before the Council members on behalf of the foregoing 
application, and noted that the 12 team international tournaments that had 82 teams that came 
from 12 countries to participate.  He referred to this organization as sports tourism because more 
people attended than was recorded and each team was required to purchase at least 20 travel 
packages for seven days, totaling an average of 7,200 hotel rooms.  Mr. Signorello noted the 
intent of the organization was to improve the tracking system of attendees to reflect the actual 
amount of participants and hotel rooms.  He also noted that with increasing the amount of the 
TDC grant, the World Baseball Foundation could make improvements on the event, increase 
productivity, and to attract more participants internationally, which would represent TDC’s 
mission.   
 
In response to Mr. Stuart Blumberg’s inquiry regarding the reason for such a wide spread area of 
hotel information within the package, rather than focusing on locations near the parks, Mr. 
Signorello noted the information was based on economics and request by participants.  He noted 
that transportation was included in the package and a portion of these funds would be used for 
bus transportation.   
 
Responding to Mr. Blumberg’s question regarding whether the Marlins Baseball Team made any 
contributions other than their logo towards this effort, Mr. Signorello said he worked with the 
Marlins Baseball Team, which supported this organization’s event by providing tickets and 
featuring a parade on their behalf.   
 
Mr. Signorello stated this was a first year the Foundation applied for funding, and the plan was to 
continue and expand this event to places like Europe, other than South Florida. 
 
Later in the meeting, it was moved by Mr. Stuart Blumberg that the FY2012-2013 TDC fourth 
funding period award recommendations by the Subcommittee for VI-E1. World Baseball 
Foundation be approved.  This motion was seconded by Mr. William Perry III, and upon being 

July 9, 2013 Clerk’s Summary of Meeting and Official Minutes Page 9 of 13 
 Tourist Development Council Meeting 



put to a vote, the vote passed 5-0 (City of Miami Beach Mayor Mattie Herrera Bower and City of 
Miami Commissioner Michelle Spence-Jones were absent).    
 
 

F. Government/Municipal (Non-Profit) First-Time  
   

VI. F-1. Downtown Development Authority of the City of Miami 
         Final Recommendation 
          $15,000 
Mr. William Perry III noted a discussion took place during the Subcommittee meeting regarding 
the Downtown Development Authority (DDA) of the City of Miami, and he asked Mr. Spring to 
share the conversation with the Council members. 
 
Mr. Spring noted there was a concern at the Subcommittee meeting regarding the applicant being 
a granting organization and applying for funding through TDC so a request was made that a 
DDA representative would make a presentation at today’s (7/9) meeting.  
 
Additionally, Mr. Perry noted a question was raised to clarify the number of room nights 
recorded by the DDA. 
 
Ms. Lauren Bourgoyne, representing the DDA appeared before the Council and noted this was 
the organization’s second year of this program and was still growing.  She noted that DDA was 
still in the process of negotiations and had a scheduled meeting with all the downtown hotels on 
August 2nd to determine the best way to collaborate.  Ms. Bourgoyne commented on the 
collaborative efforts between the DDA and the hotels last year and the effort in educating the 
concierges to assist the hotel guests regarding the event.  She noted the a record of last year’s 
event was not available due to the process of determining how to capture the information needed, 
but have identified a way to retrieve that information this year.   
 
Mr. Stuart Blumberg expressed his concern regarding TDC providing a grant to a funding 
organization, which was the first time he recalls this type of application during his time serving 
on the Council. 
 
Mr. William Perry III noted that from his experience, looking at most of these organizations, 
within their budgets, allocations were made to other organizations, and TDC supported them as 
well. 
 
Discussion ensued among the Council members regarding the past organizations that received 
grants, but also supported other organizations. 
 
Mr. Spring pointed out that TDC was a granting organization that also applied for grants as well 
and as of yesterday a grant was received from the Children’s Trust for approximately a million 
dollars to support this program.  He also noted TDC had applied for funding through the State to 
the national arts and others; however, in the case of the DDA, has a multi-faceted set of 
programs and services such as promoting downtown, which was the reason for investing in the 
television program with the assurance that the downtown music venues would be highlighted.  

July 9, 2013 Clerk’s Summary of Meeting and Official Minutes Page 10 of 13 
 Tourist Development Council Meeting 



He further noted that part of DDA’s budget was invested toward vehicles that promote 
downtown Miami and another portion was invested in cultural and special events because it 
creates activities that attract tourism, and promotes restaurants and hotel stays in that area. 
Therefore, with this focus DDA applies for grants from any entity that would provide an 
opportunity to generate more funds to build its budget to sponsor additional cultural events in 
that area.  Mr. Spring commented on the various programs and services provided by DDA that 
were supported through their budget and other resources, which was different from TDC. 
 
Additionally, Ms. Laura Bourgoyne noted the reason DDA looks for additional funding was 
because its pool of revenue was small compared to the number of projects, which included 
marketing, and urban planning.  She also noted the collaborative effort DDA has made in 
partnering with all the downtown arts and cultural organizations. 
 
Later in the meeting, it was moved Ms. Olga Ramudo that the foregoing application be approved.  
This motion was seconded by Mr. Gene Prescott, followed with a discussion.  
 
Mr. William Perry III requested that a representative of DDA return to the Council in August, 
2013 to report the numbers regarding the hotel rooms in Miami during the event. 
 
Following the discussion, the Council members proceeded to vote that the FY2012-2013 TDC 
fourth funding period award recommendations by the Subcommittee for the foregoing 
application VI F1. Downtown Development Authority of the City of Miami be approved with a 
condition to require that DDA return to the Council in August, 2013 and report the number of 
hotel rooms stayed in Miami-Dade County during this event.  Upon being put to a vote, the vote 
passed 4-1, Mr. Stuart Blumberg voted No. (City of Miami Beach Mayor Mattie Herrera Bower 
and City of Miami Commissioner Michelle Spence-Jones were absent).    
 

G. Television (For-Profit) First-Time 
 
VI. G-1. Tantra, Inc.      Final Recommendation 
          $15,000 
Mr. James Quinlan representing the Music Voyager appeared before the Council and noted that 
this television series used music as a vehicle to explore cultural destinations.  He commented on 
the choosing Miami because of the live music venues and talents that would be televised.  He 
noted that the intent was to produce and air the show nationally on public television during the 
month of November, which is considered music month.  Mr. Quinlan expressed his appreciation 
of the support from TDC, and he noted there were other broadcast partners that went global, 
which provided an instant network of broadcast partners. 
 
In response to Mr. Stuart Blumberg’s question regarding the filming location, Mr. Quinlan noted 
the live music venues from bank clubs would be located in Miami-Dade County such as “The 
Stage,” in addition to some beach venues.  He noted that the organization had not requested 
support through the Miami Beach Visitor and Convention Authority (VCA) for support because 
of the short timeframe and deadlines.  Mr. Quinlan stated this event was a one-time specific 
showing and segments were conducted in other countries such as Israel, Turkey and South 
America.   

July 9, 2013 Clerk’s Summary of Meeting and Official Minutes Page 11 of 13 
 Tourist Development Council Meeting 



  
Later in the meeting, it was moved by Ms. Olga Ramudo that FY2012-2013 TDC fourth funding 
period award recommendation for Tantra Inc., be increased from $15,000 to $20,000.  This 
motion was seconded by Mr. Stuart Blumberg for a discussion. 
 
Mr. Blumberg questioned how the foregoing applicant received financial support and how did it 
make a profit because it was listed as a for-profit organization. 
 
Mr. Quinlan explained that the production company was organized as a for-profit and was based 
in Colorado. He noted that the programs were sold through broadcasting partners who also have 
raised some sponsorship; however, it was primarily a public broadcasting based and those 
revenues were limited. 
 
Mr. Stuart Blumberg noted that although he was familiar with the applicant, he was not 
supportive in funding for-profit organizations on a first-time basis with public funds. 
 
The Council proceeded to vote that FY2012-2013 TDC fourth funding period award 
recommendation for Tantra Inc., be increased from $15,000 to $20,000.  This motion failed. 
 
It was moved by Mr. Stuart Blumberg that the FY2012-2013 TDC fourth funding period award 
recommendations by the Subcommittee for VI-G1 Tantra Inc., be approved.  This motion was 
seconded by Chairman Bovo, and upon being put to a vote, the vote passed 5-0 (City of Miami 
Beach Mayor Mattie Herrera Bower and City of Miami Commissioner Michelle Spence-Jones 
were absent).    
 
Following the Citizen’s Presentations, Chairman Bovo thanked the representatives for coming 
out and commended the organization for providing quality events for families in this community. 
  
Mr. William Talbert asked if Mr. Michael Spring could remind the Council members of the 
formula, which some are based on declining format.   
 
Mr. Michael Spring explained that the TDC has an adopted policy that a non-profit organization 
applicant was eligible for a grant in successive years that was decreased by10 percent of the 
previous year and would occur for a total of five years.  He also noted at the end of the five year 
cycle, this applicant would have an opportunity to start the five year cycle over.  Mr. Spring 
noted the policy for a for-profit organization was at a greater percentage reduction, which was 33 
percent annually for a three-year period, and would no longer be able to apply for funding 
 
Mr. Spring further explained that for non-profits the reduction funds were instituted as a policy 
so the TDC would always have a pool of revenue available for new or first-time applications. He 
further noted this policy would avoid institutionalized awards to organization, and this policy has 
worked well for TDC as well as the use of the Council’s discretion to amend or revise the 
formula on a case by case basis during a presentation. 
 
In response to Chairman Bovo’s inquiry regarding the recommendations by the TDC 
Subcommittee, Mr. Spring noted that the first tier of recommendations was by the staff that used 

July 9, 2013 Clerk’s Summary of Meeting and Official Minutes Page 12 of 13 
 Tourist Development Council Meeting 
























































	Clerk's Summary
	Agenda
	Citizen's Presentation
	Overview TDC Terms and Nominations
	3rd quarter Jr. Orange Bowl Grant Request
	Proposed Prgm & Policy
	Memo Budget Recommendations
	Memo: Recap Adopted TDC Criteria Eval.
	Application Summary Wrksht



